# Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis

# **Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine**

# Vol 2022

# https://doi.org/10.1155/2022/6721958

Desdiani Desdiani<sup>1</sup>, Iris Rengganis<sup>2</sup>, Samsuridjal Djauzi<sup>2</sup>, Agus Setiyono<sup>3</sup>,

Mohamad Sadikin<sup>4</sup>, Sri Widia A. Jusman<sup>4</sup>, Nuryati Chairani Siregar<sup>5</sup>, Suradi Suradi6, and Putri C. Eyanoer<sup>7</sup>

1 Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sultan Ageng Tirtayasa, Serang, Banten, Indonesia

2 Department of Internal Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia

3 Faculty of Veterinary Medicine, IPB University, Bogor, Indonesia

4 Department of Biochemistry and Molecular Biology, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia

5 Department of Anatomical Pathology, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia

6 Department of Pulmonology and Respiratory Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sebelas Maret, Surakarta, Indonesia

7 Department of Community Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sumatera Utara, Medan, Indonesia

Received 14 October 2021; Revised 30 May 2022; Accepted 9 June 2022; Published 26 June 2022

# Daftar isi

Daftar isi	2
Article Submission 14 Oktober 2021	3
Cover Letter	5
Submitted Article	6
Reviewer Reports 20 April 2022	24
Editor Decision 28 April 2022	25
Response to Editor Decision (For Revision Article)	27
Revise Submission 28 April 2022	
Revision 17 Mei 2022	31
Revision Reminder 24 Mei 2022	32
Article Update 9 Juni 2022	33
Article Accepted 9 Juni 2022	34
Accepted for Publication 9 Juni 2022	
Article Production 11 Juni 2022	
Galley Proof Article (Has been archived) 21 Juni 2022	
Article Published 27 Juni 2022	40

# Article Submission 14 Oktober 2021

<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>	Hindawi
This email was sent to desdiani@ymail.com. You have received this email in regards to the account creation, submission, or peer review process of a submitted paper, published by Hindawi Limited. Hindawi Limited, 3rd Floor, Adam House, 1 Fitzroy Square, London, W1T 5HF, United Kingdom Hindawi respects your right to privacy. Please see our privacy policy for information on how we store, process, and safeguard your data. <u>Unsubscribe</u>	Dear Dr. Desdiani, Congratulations, the manuscript titled "Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis" has been successfully submitted to Evidence- Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine. We will confirm this submission with all authors of the manuscript, but you will be the primary recipient of communications from the journal. As submitting author, you will be responsible for responding to editorial queries and making updates to the manuscript. In order to view the status of the manuscript, please visit the manuscript details page. Thank you for submitting your work to Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine. Kind regards, Kind regards, Karthikeyan Kalahasthi Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine
	This email was sent to desdiani@ymail.com. You have received this email in regards to the account creation, submission, or peer review process of a submitted paper, published by Hindawi Limited. Hindawi Limited, 3rd Floor, Adam House, 1 Fitzroy Square, London, W1T 5HF, United Kingdom Hindawi respects your right to privacy. Please see our privacy policy for information on how we store, process, and safeguard your data. <u>Unsubscribe</u>
	W Hindawi

BACK DASHDOARD / ARTICLE DETAILS	(1) Opdated on 2021-10-14 Version 1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis	VIEWING AN OLDER VERSION
Jesdiani Desdiani 🖾 🞑 <sup>1</sup> , Iris Rengganis <sup>2</sup> , Samsuridjal Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , Adhamad Sadikin <sup>4</sup> , Sri Widia A. Jusman <sup>4</sup> , Nuryati Chairani Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> , <sup>P</sup> utri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup> + Show Affiliations	
Article Type	
lesearch Article	
ournat Vidence-Based Complementary and Viternative Medicine	
Sülsen Valeria	Submitted on 2021-10-14 (2 years ago
> Abstract	
> Author Declaration	
N Files	

D

			cts opened of	12021-10-14 Vers	
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects	of Uncaria		(	VIEWING AN OLDER VE	RSION
<b>gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis</b> Desdiani Desdiani ঝ 🕰 <sup>1</sup> , Iris Rengganis <sup>2</sup> , Samsuridjal D	jauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> ,		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ID 6	721958
Aohamad Sadikin <sup>4</sup> , Sri Widia A. Jusman <sup>4</sup> , Nuryati Chairani <sup>J</sup> utri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup> + Show Affiliations	Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> ,				
Research Article					
ournal Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine					
Sülsen Valeria			Submitted	on 2021-10-14 (2 yea	rs ago)
> Abstract					
> Author Declaration					
V Files 2	0				
Manuscript	14 MB Gla Cov	er letter Gambir docx		20 kB	-1-1
Manuscript Gambriddex	Hindawi Privacy Policy Terms of Servic	e Support: help@hindawi.com	n	20 KD	¥.
Hindawi					Submit
		Chathan	Order		
Search By    Select search option first		All	✓ Newest first	✓ Search	
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un Desdiani Desdiani 🗟 🖾 , Iris Rengganis, Samsuridj Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago) Sülsen Valeria	ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon al Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co caria gambir on Rats with Pulmon	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative i hary Fibrosis	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine	PUBLIS	HED V2.1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani S. A., Iris Rengganis, Samsuridj         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sütsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani S. C.         ID 9991260 Submitted on 16.10.2021 (2 years ago)	ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon al Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadil Research Article • Evidence-Based Co ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine • Medicine	PUBLIS	HED V2.1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon al Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine : Medicine	PUBLIS	
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un Desdiani Desdiani ≧ ☑ , Iris Rengganis, Samsuridj Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago) Sülsen Valeria Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un Desdiani Desdiani ≦ ☑ ID 9991260 Submitted on 16.10.2021 (2 years ago) Unassigned	acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon al Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative i hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine	PUBLIS	
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani Image: Image in the image in th	acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon al Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative I hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	PUBLS	Version 1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I Is Rengganis, Samsuridj         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sütsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co ncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative i hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	PUBLIS	Version 1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani C (), Iris Rengganis, Samsuridi         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sülsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani C ()         1D 9991260 Submitted on 16.10.2021 (2 years ago)         Unassigned	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative I hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	PUBLIS	Version 1 V
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I II: Rengganis, Samsuridji         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sülsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I II: II: II: II: II: II: II: II: II:	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C Stationary Strategies • Evidence-Based C Stationary • Evidence-Based C	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative I hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	PUBLIS	Version 1 V DER VERSION
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I Is Rengganis, Samsuridi         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sütsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I Desdiani I I Desdiani Desdiani I I I I Desdiani I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadil Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C Second State of Contemporal State of Contemporal State of Uncaria Sis Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , mi Siregar <sup>8</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> ,	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	eted on 2021-10-14	Version 1 V ID 6721958
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I'is Rengganis, Samsuridi         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sütsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I         D 9991260 Submitted on 16.10.2021 (2 years ago)         Unassigned	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C Evidence-Based C Strans Strans Strans Strans Strans Strans Strans Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , ni Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> ,	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative I hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine	PUBLIS	Version 1 N DER VERSION
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadil Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based C So of Uncaria Sis Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , mi Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> ,	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative i hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Upda	PUBLIS           1 <td>Version 1 N ID 6721958</td>	Version 1 N ID 6721958
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I I Is Rengganis, Samsuridi         Suradi Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer         ID 6721958 Submitted on 09.06.2022 (a year ago)         Sülsen Valeria         Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Un         Desdiani Desdiani I I I I         Desdiani Desdiani I I II I         ID 9991260 Submitted on 16.10.2021 (2 years ago)         Unassigned	Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon at Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Mohamad Sadii Research Article • Evidence-Based Co Acaria gambir on Rats with Pulmon Research Article • Evidence-Based Co so of Uncaria sis Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , ni Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> ,	hary Fibrosis kin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Nury mplementary and Alternative hary Fibrosis omplementary and Alternative	ati Chairani Siregar, Medicine Medicine Upda	PUBLIS	Version 1 N DER VERSION ID 6721958

# **Cover Letter**

# **COVER LETTER**

Dear Editor in Chief,

Pharmacology Research & Perspectives Journal

Here, we submit a manuscript entitled "Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis " for possible publication in Pharmacology Research & Perspectives Journal. Our study is original, has not already been published, and has not and will not be submitted for publication elsewhere as long as it is under consideration by Pharmacology Research & Perspectives Journal. All authors have read and approved the manuscript and take full responsibility for its content. All authors do not have conflict of interest in regard to this study or its funding.

Thank you very much for your attention,

Best regards,

Desdiani Desdiani, MD, PhD Corresponding Author

# Submitted Article Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis

Desdiani Desdiani <sup>1</sup>, Iris Rengganis <sup>2</sup>, Samsuridjal Djauzi <sup>2</sup>, Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup>, Mohamad Sadikin <sup>4</sup>, Sri Widia A. Jusman <sup>4</sup>, Nuryati Chairani Siregar <sup>5</sup>, Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup>, and Putri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sultan Ageng Tirtayasa, Serang, Banten, Indonesia; desdiani@ymail.com

- <sup>2</sup> Department of Internal Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia; irisrengganis@gmail.com; samsuridjal.djauzi@ui.ac.id
- <sup>3</sup> Faculty of Veterinary Medicine, IPB University, Bogor, Indonesia; agusse@apps.ipb.ac.id
- <sup>4</sup> Department of Biochemistry and Molecular Biology, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia; <u>sadikinmohamad@gmail.com</u>; sriwidiaaj@yahoo.com
- <sup>5</sup> Department of Anatomical Pathology, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, Jakarta, Indonesia; anisiregar@gmail.com
- <sup>6</sup> Department of Pulmonology and Respiratory Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sebelas Maret, Surakarta, Indonesia; desdianimuchlis@gmail.com
- <sup>7</sup> Department of Community Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sumatera Utara, Medan, Indonesia; putrice00@yahoo.com

\* Correspondence author:

Desdiani Desdiani, MD, PhD Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Sultan Ageng Tirtayasa, Jalan Raya Jakarta Km.4 Pakupatan, Serang, Banten, Indonesia 42124 Tel +62254280330, Fax: +62254281254 E-mail: desdiani@ymail.com

Abstract: Pulmonary fibrosis causes scar tissue formation that disrupts the functioning of the lungs. Uncaria gambir (Hunter) Roxb (hereafter gambir)-a plant native to West Sumatra in Indonesia—contains flavonoid (+)-catechin and has strong antioxidant activity, and it can be used to combat pulmonary fibrosis. This random in vivo experimental study analyzed the antifibrotic effect of gambir on the lungs of rats with bleomycin-induced fibrosis. The subjects were 10 groups of 10-week-old male rats weighing around 200-250 g. All groups were terminated at the end of the seventh week or on day 50. The lungs were cleaned, and tissues were taken to analyze inflammatory cell counts and TGF-B1 levels using bronchoalveolar lavage (BAL) with ELISA; type I collagen and tissue inhibitor of metalloproteinase 1 (TIMP-1) levels using immunohistochemistry (IHC); and activation of NF-kB using ELISA and Western blot assays. The most severe histopathological characteristic based on the modified Ashcroft score was in the bleomycin group (BG), whereas the mildest was in the 262 mg/kg of bodyweight antifibrotic gambir-dosed group (AF G262). The results showed a significant difference in the BAL inflammatory cell count (p = 0.017; p < 0.05). AF G262 differed most from the other antifibrotic groups in terms of the number of inflammatory cells (0.63), TGFβ1 levels (3.80), and NF-κB levels (0.48), followed by the 131 mg/kg of bodyweight antifibrotic gambir-dosed group (AF G131), which also differed most from other antifibrotic groups in terms of NF-κB (0.48), TIMP-1 (11.74), and collagen I (14.50) levels. Western blot analysis showed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups had a specific band size of p65, whereas no specific band binding existed in the control group. This study concluded that the administration of AF G262 could improve fibrosis by lysing the extracellular matrix (ECM) in rat lungs.

Keywords: inflammatory cells; fibropreventive; antifibrotic; gambir

#### 1. Introduction

Pulmonary fibrosis is a condition that causes scar tissue formation and involves an infiltration of inflammatory cells, a proliferation of fibroblasts and reactive oxygen species (ROS), and excessive extracellular matrix accumulation in the pulmonary parenchymal tissue, which can inhibit pulmonary functioning [1]. The pathogenesis of fibrosis also involves the growth factor TGF- $\beta$  as an important fibrosis mediator because it is a potential target for antifibrotic therapy [2]. Based on data from the Indonesian Pulmonary Doctors Association (Persatuan Dokter Paru Indonesia; PDPI), the prevalence of pulmonary fibrosis in Indonesia in 2017 reached 6.26-7.73 percent per 1,000,000 population and was predicted to increase. Only 700-1500 patients were detected due to a lack of treatment [3]. Green tea, with its catechin (flavonoid) content, proved to have fibrolytic and fibropreventive effects in a study on rats [1]. Uncaria gambir (Hunter) Roxb (hereafter gambir) is a member of the Rubiaceae family and is abundant in Southeast Asia, especially in the Sumatra region. This plant's flavonoid (+)-catechin is known for its strong antioxidant activity [4]. Catechin can repair alcohol-induced liver damage through the mechanism of the in vivo NF- $\kappa$ B anti-inflammatory pathway [5]. Based on the previous study [1], gambir can also be used for pulmonary fibrosis treatment; therefore, an in vivo study was required to examine its mechanism as an antifibrotic and/or fibropreventive substance. Intratracheal bleomycin induction is the best preclinical test to study fibrosis in animal models. Bleomycin can induce oxidative stress in pulmonary tissue, triggering an inflammatory reaction and the formation of fibrotic tissues [2]. As a new therapy for pulmonary fibrosis (which is currently irreversible), the administration of gambir was expected to prevent and treat extensive pulmonary fibrosis in rat models. Green tea was used for fibropreventive and antifibrotic comparison.

#### 2. Materials and Methods

#### 2.1. Ethics Statement

This study was conducted according to the requirements of the Helsinki Declaration, and approval was obtained from the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Veterinary Medicine IPB University, Bogor, Indonesia, under registration number 114/KEH/SKE/XII/2018, and the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia.

#### 2.2. Rats and Gambir Dosing

This random in vivo analytical study, with an experimental design, was performed on healthy 10-week-old Sprague–Dawley male rats weighing  $\pm 200-250$  g each. Prior to treatment, the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages covered with wood shavings containing 1 rat per cage. The rats received standard food and drink ad libitum and an albendazole anthelmintic. The room temperature was kept at 25–30 °C, with 80–90% humidity, under 12 h of light and 12 h of darkness. Besides ensuring adaptation to treatment conditions, acclimatization helped in selecting sick animals. In this study, the subjects were divided into 10 groups of 3 rats each, as follows:

- 1. negative control group (NG)
- 2. bleomycin group (BG); rats only given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight bleomycin from day 0 to day 21
- 3. fibropreventive group (FP GT): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight bleomycin on day 8 and day 28 + green tea daily for 49 days
- 4. antifibrotic group (AF GT): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 0 and day 21 + green tea from day 15 to day 49

- 5. fibropreventive group (FP G65): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 8 and day 28 + 65 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily until day 49
- 6. fibropreventive group (FP G131): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 8 and day 28 + 131 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily until day 49
- fibropreventive group (FP G262): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 8 and day 28 + 262 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily until day 49
- antifibrotic group (AF G65): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 0 and day 21 + 65 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily from day 15 to day 49
- antifibrotic group (AF G131): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 0 and day 21 + 131 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily from day 15 to day 49
- antifibrotic group (AF G262): rats given 4 mg/kg of bodyweight of bleomycin on day 0 and day 21 + 262 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir daily from day 15 to day 49

The dose of green tea used was 125 mg/kg of bodyweight given orally. All rats were terminated at the end of the seventh week or on day 50.

#### 2.3. Lung Tissue Histology

Prior to staining, the organs were fixed with paraffin to maintain the cell texture and structure during the cutting and staining process. The hydration stage aimed to facilitate the entry of dyes because water-soluble materials were used. Staining to observe lung cells/tissue was performed with hematoxylin eosin using Hematoxylin-Mayer reagent and Eosin solution (HE) and with Masson's trichome (MT) using Carrazi's hematoxylin reagent, orange G 0.75%, Ponceau xylidine fuchsin, 2.5% phosphotungstic acid solution, and aniline blue. Staining was carried out on tissue section thicknesses of 3–5 mm. Thereafter, dehydration was conducted using a suitable xylene-soluble material (DPX). Tissue staining was followed by observing the collagen structure formation under a microscope and evaluating the fibrosis in each treatment group. The fibrosis images were analyzed using a modified Aschroft score.

Immunohistochemical staining was carried out using the Dako Real Envision (Dako) procedure with a special object glass coated with poly-L-lysine. The percentage of fibrosis area was calculated, and the protein expression level was tested using immunohistochemical examination. The percentage of fibrosis area was the ratio of the total area of brown collagen to the total area of one visual field, and the calculation of the extracellular collagen I and TIMP-1 expression levels was carried out using image analysis techniques with the ImageJ program.

### 2.4. Bronchoalveolar Lavage Fluid Collection, Cell Counts, and TGF-B1 ELISA

The lungs of all the groups were cleaned and prepared to analyze the inflammatory cells and TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels using BAL and the ELISA method. The debris was separated from the BAL fluid at a centrifugation speed of 5000 rpm for 5 min. Absorption was read with an ELISA reader at a wavelength of 450 nm. The results of the absorbance measurements were calculated as averages and then tabulated prior to preparing a concentration diagram of the absorbance. After obtaining the results of the formula, using absorbance data, the sample concentration was calculated.

#### 2.5. NF-KB ELISA and Western Blot Analysis

Activation of NF-κB was assessed using ELISA and Western blot assays. The ELISA procedure was carried out after the tissue was homogenized by centrifugation for 15 min at a speed of 10,000 rpm to prepare an antibody cocktail as an ELISA reagent and standard preparation. The results were read with the ELISA reader at 450 nm. The results of the absorbance measurements were calculated as averages and

tabulated, and then a concentration diagram of the absorbance was prepared. After obtaining the results of the formula, using absorbance data, the sample concentration was calculated.

The lung tissue was homogenized in PBS containing a protease inhibitor. After homogenization, it was centrifuged for 15 min at 14,000 rpm at 4 °C. The supernatants of the lung tissue were collected, and the protein concentration of each sample was measured using a bicinchoninic acid (BCA) assay kit according to the BSA standard. Then, 150  $\mu$ g of protein for each sample was dissolved in 10% Trisglycine SDS polyacrylamide gel. The protein bands were transferred to the nitrocellulose membranes, and after 1 h of incubation in liquid (5% dry milk and Trisbuffered saline/Tween 20) at room temperature, the membranes were incubated for 24 h with anti TGF- $\beta$ 1. Secondary antibodies were added at a dilution of 1:10,000 and incubated at room temperature for 1 h. The densitometry of nitrocellulose membrane, antibodies, and secondary antibodies was conducted with ImageQuant LAS4000.

The resulting data were analyzed with SPSS v. 20. An ANOVA test was performed to check for any differences between variables, followed by post hoc tests if the results were significant.

## 3. Results

#### 3.1. Formation of Fibrotic Tissue in the Lung Tissue of Mice Exposed to Bleomycin

The baseline characteristics of the subjects included demographic characteristics (bodyweight and lung weight) and pulmonary macroscopic images, as shown in Table 1.

Group n = 3	Bodyweight, mean (g)	Lung weight, mean (g)	Relative organ weight	Macroscopic Image
NG	218 g	3.7	0.016	No damage to the lungs.
BG	232 g	4.3	0.018	Damage to the lungs, marked by bleeding, edema, and lumps.
FP GT	246 g	4	0.016	Little damage to the lungs.
AF GT	235 g	3.3	0.014	Little damage to the lungs.
FP G65	212 g	3	0.014	Little damage to the lungs, with several parts seeming normal.
FP G131	243 g	3.9	0.016	Extensive damage to the lungs, marked by edema, lumps, bleeding, and a bluish-red tone.
FP G262	210 g	2.8	0.013	Damage to the lungs, bleeding, and lumps, but not as severe as for FP G131.
AF G65	221 g	4	0.018	Little damage to the lungs, and several parts seemed normal.
AF G131	240 g	4.1	0.017	Extensive damage to the lungs, marked by edema, lumps, bleeding, and a bluish-red tone.
AF G262	229 g	3	0.013	Little damage to the lungs, and several parts seemed normal.

Table 1. Characteristics and Macroscopic Imaging of Rat Lungs

The subjects were 10-week-old male rats assigned to 10 groups of 3 rats each with bodyweights of approximately 200–250 g. The lowest bodyweight mean average was in FP G262, at 210 g, whereas the highest was in FP GT, at 246 g. After termination, the lungs were weighed and their macroscopic characteristics assessed. The lung weights of all subjects were approximately 2.8–4.1 g. Relative organ weight was calculated as the lung weight divided by the bodyweight. NG had the highest relative organ weight, at 0.018 g, whereas FP G262 and AF G262 had the lowest relative organ weights, at 0.013. The macroscopic imaging of the subjects is shown in Figure 1.



**Figure 1. Macroscopic image of pulmonary tissue of the subjects. Arrow indicated bleeding and lumps in the lung tissue.** BG group was smaller compared to NG, although had heavier relative weight (0.016 vs 0.018). FP GT, AF GT, FP G65, AF G65 and AF G262 showed less damage compared to other groups.

## 3.2. Effects of Gambir on Bleomycin-Induced Pulmonary Fibrosis

According to the histopathological characteristics, each group was assessed using a modified Ashcroft score to determine the stages of fibrosis. The most severe histopathological characteristic based on the modified Ashcroft score was observed in BG. In the gambir groups, the most severe was observed in FP G131 and FP G262, as shown in Figure 2.

Group	Stage of Fibrosis	Histopathological image of the lungs with HE & MT
• NG	Stage 0	NG (Negative Group) MT
• AF G262	Stage 3	AF G262 HE AF 6363 MT
• FP GT		FP GT M T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
• AF GT		AF GT MT
• FP G65		
• AF G65		
• AF G131		
	Stage 5	PP GDS PH PP GDS M T
•	Stage 6	FP G33 MT FP G262 H FP G262 H FP G262 H FP G262 H FP G262 H FP G262 H FP G262 H
• BG	Stage 7	BG (Bleomycin Group) H F

NG = Negative control group; BG = Bleomycin group; FP GT = fibropreventive green tea; AF GT = antifibrotic green tea; FP G65 = 65 mg/kg bodyweight of fibropreventive gambir; FP G131 = 131 mg/kg bodyweight of fibropreventive gambir;

FP G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of fibropreventive gambir; AF G65 = 65 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir; AF G131 = 131 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir; AF G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir.

# Figure 2. Histopathological changes in pulmonary tissues of treatment groups using Hematoxylin-Eosin (HE) and Masson Trichome (MT) staining.

#### 3.3. Gambir Alters Inflammatory Cell Profiles in Lungs

The inflammatory cell count results from the bronchoalveolar lavage (BAL) assessment for groups 1–10 were 2.90 (2.3–4.0), 5.70 (5.0–5.8), 2.25 (2.0–2.8), 3.35 (2.7–3.4), 3.0 (2.8–3.2), 4.75 (4.6–5.3), 2.60 (2.0–3.5), 3.70 (1.6–3.8), 4.00 (3.9–4.8), and 2.10 (2.0–3.5), respectively. The statistical test showed a significant difference in the BAL inflammatory cell count (p = 0.017; p < 0.05). The post hoc analysis of the inflammatory cell count differences between the fibropreventive, antifibrotic green tea, and gambir groups revealed significant differences between several groups, as shown in Figure 3.



Figure 3. Comparison of inflammatory cell count between groups. Noted significant decrease of BAL inflammatory cell count caused by the administration of green tea and gambir compared to bleomycin group (\*\*P < 0.05 vs BG)

## 3.4. Gambir Has No Effect on Preventing TGF-\$1 Expression and Activation

The results of the TGF- $\beta$ 1-level measurements (pg/mg protein) for groups 1–10 were 0.88 (0.3–2.3), 4.52 (2.6–6.2), 1.14 (0.1–2.6), 2.30 (1.0–4.4), 1.12 (0.4–1.6), 2.58 (1.2–6.7), 2.97 (1.6–3.5), 1.50 (0.3–2.3), 1.02 (0.1–3.1), and 0.64 (0.5–0.8), respectively. The statistical results of all groups showed insignificant differences in TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels (p = 0.117; p > 0.05), as shown in Figure 4.



**Figure 4. Comparison of TGF-\beta1 BAL between groups.** There was insignificant difference of TGF- $\beta$ 1 BAL level between groups (P > 0.05).

The results of the TIMP-1 expression assessment using Image J for groups 1– 10 were 26.77 (16.76–28.77), 40.5 (32.44–40.6), 27.28 (21.36–43.34), 28.56 (22.62– 35.70), 27.87 (23.14–28.41), 30.37 (20.97–34.70), 35.30 (32.46–43.13), 34.58 (26.50–35.51), 27.84 (22.28–28.20), and 24.52 (23.03–33.22), respectively. Additionally, the results of the collagen I expression assessment using Image J for groups 1–10 were 29.2 (26.35–32.03), 48.36 (44.51–49.02), 36.04 (26.17–39.99), 38.02 (29.40–38.64), 36.82 (34.88–47.71), 35.59 (32.53–48.90), 38.4 (29.82–38.77),



39.46 (33.43–39.93), 28.41 (26.42–43.57), and 39.43 (37.95–41.40), respectively. The statistical results of all groups revealed no significant differences in TIMP-1 and collagen I expression levels (p = 0.31 and p = 0.168; p > 0.05), as shown in Figure 5. **Figure 5. Comparison of TIMP-1 and collagen I expression between groups.** There was insignificant difference in TIMP-1 and collagen I expression between groups (P > 0.05).

#### 3.5. Gambir Does Not Prevent Bleomycin-Induced Activation of NF-кВ

The results of the NF- $\kappa$ B assessment (pg/mg protein) for groups 1–10 were 3.34 (2.5–5.1), 2.41 (1.0–3.5), 2.62 (2.2–2.8), 1.89 (1.9–3.2), 2.89 (2.2–5.3), 4.38 (3.4–5.6), 4.36 (3.3–5.7), 2.79 (1.7–3.1), 1.59 (1.0–3.0), and 0.70 (0.6–4.2), respectively. The statistical results of all groups showed no significant differences in NF- $\kappa$ B levels (p = 0.134; p > 0.05), as shown in Figure 6.

Figure 6. Comparison of pulmonary tissue NF-KB level between groups.



There was insignificant difference in pulmonary tissue NF- $\kappa$ B level between groups (P > 0.05).

Mean discrepancy values were obtained by deducting the mean value for the bleomycin group from the mean value for the treatment group. The largest discrepancy in the inflammatory cell count was observed in FP GT. The largest discrepancies in the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and NF- $\kappa$ B levels were seen in AF G262. The largest discrepancies in TIMP-1 and collagen expression levels were seen in AF G131. Among the fibropreventive groups, FP GT had the largest discrepancy in terms of the inflammatory cell count (3.15) and NF- $\kappa$ B (-0.22) and collagen I expression (13.23) levels, followed by FP G65, which had the largest discrepancy among the fibropreventive groups in terms of the TGF- $\beta$ 1 (3.38) and TIMP-1 expression (11.37) levels. In regard to the inflammatory cell count, increasing or decreasing the gambir dose had no effect on reducing the inflammatory cell count. By contrast, in terms of the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and collagen I expression levels (i.e., decreasing the mean discrepancies for the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and collagen I expression levels in line with increasing gambir doses). The mean discrepancy for the NF- $\kappa$ B levels was negative, meaning that the fibropreventive gambir and green tea groups had a higher mean NF- $\kappa$ B level compared to BG, and the higher the gambir dose, the higher the NF- $\kappa$ B level.

AF G262 had the largest discrepancy among the antifibrotic groups in terms of the number of inflammatory cells (0.63) and the TGF- $\beta$ 1 (3.80) and NF- $\kappa$ B (0.48) levels, followed by AF G131, which also had the largest discrepancy among the antifibrotic groups in terms of the NF- $\kappa$ B (0.48), TIMP-1 (11.74), and collagen I (14.50) levels. The Western blot examination showed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups had a specific band size of p65, whereas no specific band binding existed in the green tea group.

Western blot assay revealed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups of gambir was seen in a specific band of p65, as shown in Figure 7. **Figure 7. Western blot result on gambir group.** 



Meanwhile, the negative control group, bleomycin group, and fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups of green tea extract did not show a specific band.

#### 3.6. Gambir is an Effective Antifibrotic Treatment

The results of our study demonstrated that gambir decreased the number of inflammatory cells, as well as the levels of TGF- $\beta$ 1, NF- $\kappa$ B, TIMP-1, and collagen I expression. However, fibropreventively, the increase in the dose of gambir was not in line with the decrease in the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and TIMP-1 expression levels. On the contrary, a lower dose of gambir produced a decrease in TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels and better TIMP-1 expression. The antifibrotic groups showed an increase in the gambir dose in line with a decrease in the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and NF- $\kappa$ B levels, and lower TIMP-1 expression levels. This was supported by macroscopic and microscopic images that revealed less lung tissue damage and a lesser degree of fibrosis based on the modified Aschroft score, which was better than that for BG and other gambir groups.

#### 4. Discussion

#### 4.1. Characteristics of Green Tea and Gambir Subjects

No study on gambir has examined its ability to decrease or prevent pulmonary fibrosis in humans and animals. Gambir is known to have a strong antioxidant effect because it contains abundant catechin [6–8]. Melia et al. revealed that, besides its high antioxidant activity, gambir also exhibits antimicrobial activity [9]. Idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis (IPF), which is a fatal lung disease marked by chronic, progressive fibrosis, inhibits the functioning of the lungs, and oxidative stress is the main pathway in IPF [10]. According to Tsai et al. [11]. the antifibrosis, anti-inflammatory, and antioxidative effects of catechin have been reported. Several in vitro and in vivo studies have shown that catechin can weaken fibroblast proliferation, increase antioxidant protection, and inhibit inflammation.

The administration of 262 mg/kg of bodyweight and 65 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir to the antifibrotic groups and 65 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir to the fibropreventive groups reduced macroscopic damage to pulmonary tissues compared to BG. This study showed that the administration of 131 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir to the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups resulted in extensive pulmonary tissue damage, characterized by pulmonary edema, lumps, bleeding, and a bluish-red tone. This may have been caused by the inhibition of the drug side-effect elimination system and toxic effect of gambir at a certain dose on the lungs of animals.

#### 4.2. The Administration of Green Tea Reduced the Inflammatory Cell Count

Furthermore, this study showed that the administration of green tea could reduce the number of inflammatory cells caused by intratracheal bleomycin. Fibrotic pulmonary tissue first undergoes cellular inflammation and histologically exhibits an accumulation of inflammatory cells, such as lymphocytes, macrophages, plasma cells, eosinophils, and neutrophils. Inflammatory response is one of the paths to pulmonary fibrosis [12].

In this study, the administration of green tea to the antifibrotic and fibropreventive groups also decreased the levels of TGF- $\beta$ . TGF- $\beta$  induces myofibroblast proliferation and extracellular matrix protein synthesis, and suppresses ECM degradation by increasing antiproteinase or reducing metalloprotease, causing fibrosis. TGF- $\beta$ 1 also stimulates ROS production, leading to oxidative stress by reducing the antioxidant enzymes in the lungs and hepatocytes, such as catalase, GSH, and SOD, which can inhibit fibrogenic responses due to oxidative stress [13]. The administration of bleomycin to rats increased cytokine and chemokine levels on days 7 and 14 compared to a control [14]. This study concluded that bleomycin administered intratracheally and fibropreventive green tea could reduce TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels, inducing fibrosis. Tabuchi et al. [15] proposed that green tea could suppress TGF- $\beta$ 1 by interacting with type 2 TGF- $\beta$  receptors.

NF-kB is a type of regulator protein for the immune system and inflammatory responses [16]. Damaged pulmonary tissues activate NF- $\kappa$ B through phosphorylation, mediated by I $\kappa$ B kinase (IKK); the degradation of inhibitory molecules, such as IkBa; and phosphorylation of the NF-kB p65 subunit. The activated NF-kB then binds in a specific DNA sequence to regulate several inflammatory gene expressions. Additionally, NF-κB regulates three main functions: activation of inflammatory T cells, survivability, and inflammatory responses. Activation of NF-kB is responsible for profibrogenic signaling pathways. Based on the results of this study, bleomycin administration leads to a significant increase in NF- $\kappa$ B levels, triggering inflammatory cytokines, such as TNF- $\alpha$  and IL-1 $\beta$ , and chemokines, such as MCP-1 (monocytes chemoattractant protein-1). S. Beigh et al. [17] found that TNF- $\alpha$  and transcription factor NF- $\kappa$ B levels increased in fibrotic pulmonary tissue induced by intratracheal 5 mg/kg bleomycin. Moreover, they stated that suppressing the NF-kB signaling pathway could prevent the myofibroblast differentiation and fibrosis caused by bleomycin, followed by a reduction in  $\beta$ catechin expression. Green tea has an antioxidant effect, inhibiting the activation of NF-kB by suppressing collagen formation and TIMP-1 through in vivo antifibrotic and fibropreventive mechanisms in the liver [4,18].

4.3. Administration of 262 mg/kg of Bodyweight of Gambir Reduced the Inflammatory Cell Count

The inflammatory cell count results of the BAL assessment for 65 mg/kg of bodyweight, 131 mg/kg of bodyweight, and 262 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir for the fibropreventive/antifibrotic and control groups showed that AF G262 had the lowest count, whereas BG had the highest. Tsai et al. [11] reported that several in vitro and in vivo studies indicated various effects of catechin on fibroblasts, such as suppressing cell proliferation, increasing antioxidant protection, and inhibiting inflammation.

The lowest TGF- $\beta$ 1 level was in AF G262, followed by NG, and the highest was in BG. You et al. [19] stated that epigallocatechin gallate (EGCG) could inhibit the proliferation of myofibroblasts by suppressing the secretion of TGF- $\beta$ 1. This study demonstrated that the administration of gambir reduced TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels, which could induce fibrosis.

The lowest NF- $\kappa$ B level was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in FP G131, followed by FP G262. Paola [20] revealed that catechin reduced the exudate level of TNF-alpha, active cytokines, and several signaling pathways, leading to the activation of the NF- $\kappa$ B transcription factor. Polyphenol inhibited the induction of tumor necrosis factor-alpha in macrophages by suppressing the activation of NF- $\kappa$ B.

# 4.4. The Administration of 262 mg/kg of Bodyweight of Gambir to the Antifibrotic Groups Reduced the Inflammatory Cell Counts Compared to Fibropreventive Green Tea

The lowest inflammatory cell count was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in FP G131. Dona et al. [21] stated that green tea strongly inhibits in vitro and in vivo neutrophil activities and, as an orally available medicine, may be effective in treating and preventing fibrosis.

The lowest TGF- $\beta$ 1 level was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in FP G262. Lago et al. [22] stated that flavonoid-type antifibrotic therapy could reduce TGF- $\beta$ 1 levels in the lungs of rats with fibrosis.

The lowest NF- $\kappa$ B level was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in FP G131. The statistical test results did not reveal significant differences in the NF- $\kappa$ B levels (p = 0.089; p > 0.05). Gambir has proven to have an antioxidant effect via various mechanisms, including the inhibition of NF- $\kappa$ B activation. It acts as an antifibrotic agent, not only by inhibiting NF- $\kappa$ B activation but also through its role as an anti-inflammatory and antioxidant agent. Gambir may suppress the pro-inflammatory pathways related to most chronic diseases and inhibit the production of TNF and cell signaling mediated by TNF in various types of cells. Gambir has an antioxidant effect, inhibiting NF- $\kappa$ B activation by suppressing the formation of collagen and TIMP-1 through in vivo antifibrotic and fibropreventive mechanisms in the liver [4,5].

# 4.5. Histopathological Imaging of Pulmonary Tissues Using Hematoxylin-Eosin and Masson's Trichome Staining Based on a Modified Ashcroft Score

From histopathological results based on the modified Ashcroft score, the green tea and gambir groups showed improvement, especially in AF G262, which exhibited a stage 3 modified Ashcroft score. The administration of preventive gambir in 131 mg/kg of bodyweight and 262 mg/kg of bodyweight doses produced histopathological images based on a stage 6 modified Ashcroft score, which tended to be more severe than other groups, albeit better than in BG. This indicated that the administration of preventive gambir and an increased dosage did not improve fibrosis in a dose-dependent manner. Other studies stated that the administration of bleomycin could increase the expression of inflammatory cytokines, followed by an increase in profibrotic mediators, such as TGF-\$1, lysophosphatidic acid (LPA), and matrix deposition. The matrix metalloprotease (MMP) gene includes MMP12, MMP19, and lysyl oxidase-like (LOXL) [23]. Gambir and green tea are believed to suppress the expression of inflammatory cytokines and profibrotic mediators, one of which is TIMP-1 and collagen I expression. This was proved by Sri Ningsih in her study on the role of gambir extract in suppressing the development of liver fibrosis [18]. Seger et al. [24], who examined histopathological images of fibrotic lungs, showed an accumulation of fibrotic tissue and collagen deposition in the alveolar septum using specific Masson's trichome staining.

# 4.6. Administration of Bleomycin Increased TIMP-1 and Collagen I Expression Percentages

The lowest TIMP-1 expression was in NG, whereas the highest was in BG. TIMP-1 is believed to have an antiapoptotic effect on activated pulmonary epithelial cells. Hemmann [25] believes that MMP and its physiological inhibitor, TIMP-1, play an important role in the development of fibrotic tissue. Zhen et al. [26] revealed that during fibrosis progression, fibroblasts showed increased proliferation and migration, increased matrix protein expression, and production of MMP and TIMP, causing interstitial collagen or extracellular matrix substitution.

The lowest collagen I expression was in NG, whereas the highest was in BG. Green tea is believed to inhibit the formation of collagen I by increasing the production of MMP and triggering several types of cells, such as macrophages, to increase collagen I degradation. Salem et al. [27] claimed that a green tea group showed thin interalveolar septa, decreased cellular infiltration, red blood cells, and accumulation of collagen fibers. Immunohistochemistry staining was represented by a brown color.

## 4.7. Administration of 262 mg/kg of Bodyweight Gambir to the Antifibrotic Groups Decreased the TIMP-1 Expression Percentage, and Administration of 131 mg/kg of Bodyweight of Gambir to the Antifibrotic Groups Decreased the Collagen I Expression Percentage

The lowest TIMP-1 expression was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in BG. The PCR results in the study conducted by Dona et al. [21] showed that catechin increased collagen I and TIMP-1 transcription. Catechin inhibited the production of collagen I and increased MMP; therefore, catechin is believed to be a potential therapy for liver fibrosis.

The lowest collagen I expression was in AF G131, and the highest was in BG. FP G131 had lower collagen I expression than the other fibropreventive groups and BG, although it was higher than in NG. AF G131 had lower collagen I expression than the other antifibrotic groups and the control groups (NG and BG). This was caused by the dose-dependent antioxidant activity of gambir, with a lower dose producing a suboptimal response and a higher dose potentially being toxic, which is in accordance with the work of Tsai et al. [11]. Nakamuta et al. [28] concluded that the dose of catechin affected the production of collagen and MMP activity. Catechin could inhibit the production of collagen and increase MMP in liver fibrosis.

# 4.8. Administration of 262 mg/kg of Bodyweight of Gambir to the Antifibrotic Groups Decreased the Percentage of TIMP-1 Expression, and Administration of 131 mg/kg of Bodyweight of Gambir to the Antifibrotic Groups Reduced the Percentage of Collagen I Compared to Green Tea

The lowest TIMP-1 expression was in AF G262, whereas the highest was in FP G262. Based on microscopic images, TIMP-1 and collagen I expressions were marked by well-defined brown fibers along the alveolar septa. There were various TIMP-1 and collagen I expressions in all groups, but the differences were not significant. Tissue inhibitors of metalloproteinase (TIMPs) are specific, endogenous inhibitor proteins of matrix metalloproteinases (MMPs). Increased TIMP levels result in ECM accumulation, which causes pulmonary fibrosis [29]. In this study, the mean percentages for TIMP-1 and collagen I expressions between groups indicated that AF G262 had a lower percentage than that of BG, although it was higher than that of NG. This was supported by Sri Ningsih, who revealed that the administration of gambir extract decreased TIMP-1 and collagen I expression, which in turn suppressed the development of liver fibrosis [18].

The lowest collagen I expression was in AF G131, whereas the highest was in AF G65. Antifibrotic doses of 131 mg/kg of bodyweight gambir are believed to inhibit the formation of collagen I by increasing the production of MMP and

triggering several types of cells, such as macrophages, thus increasing collagen I degradation. Chen et al. [30] stated that the calculation and identification of extracellular matrix and collagen I expression could be accomplished using immunohistochemistry staining and image analysis techniques.

### 4.9. Interaction between Gambir and NF-KB Using the Western Blot Method

Western blot assays revealed that FP G65, FP G131, FP G262, AF G65, AF G131, and AF G262 had a specific p65 NF- $\kappa$ B dimer-size band. This indicated that the bonding interaction of gambir with NF- $\kappa$ B could prevent it from translocating to the nucleus, thus initiating no inflammatory/fibrogenesis process. Bitzer et al. [31] confirmed that the protective effect of an antifibrosis agent was correlated to a high level of Smad7 and inactivation of the NF- $\kappa$ B and TGF- $\beta$ 1 signaling pathways by performing Western blot analysis on I $\kappa\beta\alpha$  and NF- $\kappa$ Bp65 antibodies. The fibropreventive and antifibrotic mechanisms of green tea and gambir identified in this study are shown in Figure 8.

## Figure 8. Mechanism of fibropreventive and antifibrotic of gambir

# A. Fibropreventive

## B. Antifibrotic



- A. Gambir and green tea were given initially to suppress the production of ECM by interrupting the activation of type 1 pulmonary epithelial cells, suppressing the activities of ROS, mediators, and inflammatory cells, followed by the administration of bleomycin at the beginning of weeks 2 and 4. (2) The damage to type 1 pulmonary epithelial tissue is decreased. (3) The activities of ROS, inflammatory cells (including neutrophils, macrophages, and lymphocytes), and the activities of the inflammatory mediators TGF- $\beta$ 1, NF- $\kappa$ B, and TIMP-1/collagen decreased. (4) The activation of fibroblasts and myofibroblast proliferation decreased. (5) The deposition of the extracellular matrix (especially in FP GT) decreased.
- B. Bleomycin was given first to initiate fibrosis, followed by the administration of gambir and green tea at the beginning of week 3 to lyse ECM and suppression of the activation of type 1 epithelial cells. (2) Type 2 pulmonary epithelial damage improved. (3) The activities of ROS, inflammatory cells (including neutrophils, macrophages, and lymphocytes), and inflammatory mediator TGFβ1, NF-κB, and TIMP-1/collagen expression levels were suppressed. (4) Activation of fibroblasts and myofibroblasts decreased. (5) Lysis of the extracellular matrix occurred (especially in AF G262).

The fibropreventive effect of green tea proved to be better than that of the gambir, a result supported by El Safti et al. [32]. Due to different methods of administration, pulmonary fibrosis improvement might occur through natural recovery after arresting bleomycin induction in the moderate stage of fibrosis. Increasing the dose of gambir did not have the expected fibropreventive effect related to the dose-dependent antioxidant activity of gambir as stated by Tsai et al. [11]. Many studies have demonstrated the effectiveness of green tea in inhibiting pulmonary fibrosis. The administration of preventive gambir in 131 mg/kg of

bodyweight and 262 mg/kg of bodyweight doses did not result in low-stage histopathological images based on a stage 6 modified Ashcroft score, which tended to be worse than in the other groups, albeit better than in BG. This showed that the administration of preventive gambir and an increase in the dose did not improve fibrosis in a dose-dependent manner. AF G262 showed a reduced (stage 3) modified Ashcroft score/histopathological image and decreased inflammatory cell counts and levels of TGF- $\beta$ 1, TIMP-1 and NF- $\kappa$ B, which prompted the formation of fibrosis; therefore, the administration of 262 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir could improve fibrosis/lyse ECM in rat lungs.

In summary, AF G262 had the largest discrepancy among the antifibrotic groups in terms of the number of inflammatory cells, the TGF-β1 and NF-κB levels. The Western blot examination showed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups had a specific band size of p65, whereas no specific band binding existed in the green tea group. The results of our study demonstrated that gambir decreased the number of inflammatory cells, as well as the levels of TGF-β1, NF-κB, TIMP-1, and collagen I expression. However, fibropreventively, the increase in the dose of gambir was not in line with the decrease in the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and TIMP-1 expression levels. On the contrary, a lower dose of gambir produced a decrease in TGF-B1 levels and better TIMP-1 expression. The antifibrotic groups showed an increase in the gambir dose in line with a decrease in the TGF- $\beta$ 1 and NF- $\kappa$ B levels, and lower TIMP-1 expression levels. This was supported by macroscopic and microscopic images that revealed less lung tissue damage and a lesser degree of fibrosis based on the modified Aschroft score, which was better than that for BG and other gambir groups. Further studies are needed to consider MMP, ROS, and fibroblast counts after the administration of 262 mg/kg of bodyweight of gambir for 7 weeks in animal models. Further studies are also needed to determine the safety of gambir for humans at a dose equivalent to 262 mg/kg of bodyweight for seven weeks.

#### **Author Contributions:**

Conceptualization: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono Data curation: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Nuryati Chairani Siregar, Putri C. Eyanoer

Formal analysis: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Nuryati Chairani Siregar, Suradi, Putri C. Eyanoer

Funding acquisition: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono, Investigation: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Mohamad Sadikin, Sri Widia A. Jusman Methodology: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Putri C. Eyanoer

Resources: Mohamad Sadikin, Sri Widia A. Jusman

Supervision: Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono , Mohamad Sadikin, Sri Widia A. Jusman, Suradi

Writing - original draft: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis,

Writing - review & editing: Desdiani Desdiani, Iris Rengganis, Samsuridjal Djauzi, Agus Setiyono

**Funding:** This research was funded by Beasiswa Unggulan Dosen Indonesia Dalam Negeri (BUDI-DN) through the Ministry of Research, Technology and Higher Education of the Republic of Indonesia (KEMRISTEKDIKTI), together with the Indonesia Endowment Fund for Education (LPDP).

**Institutional Review Board Statement:** All procedures related to animal studies were approved by the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Veterinary Medicine IPB University, Bogor, Indonesia under registration number 114/KEH/SKE/XII/2018 and the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia, in full accordance with the ethical guidelines of the National Institutes of Health for the care and use of laboratory animals.

Informed Consent Statement: Not applicable.

Data Availability Statement: Data is contained within the article.

Acknowledgments: We thank Dr. Sri Ningsih (MSi., Apt.), DVM. Dedi Nur Aripin, and Dr. Chairul Nurdin for their assistance with this study. We thank to www.scribendi.com for proofreading our manuscript.

**Conflicts of Interest:** The authors declare no conflict of interest.

A preprint has previously been published [Ref. 2021100086]

#### References

1. Tsukioka T, Takemura S, Minamiyama Y, Mizuguchi S, Toda M, Okada S. Attenuation of Bleomycin-Induced pulmonary fibrosis in rats with S-Allyl cysteine. Molecules. 2017;22(4):543. DOI: 10.3390/molecules22040543

2. Tashiro J, Rubio GA, Limper AH, Williams K, Elliot SJ, Ninou I, et al. Exploring animal models that resemble idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis. Front Med. 2017;4:118. DOI: 10.3389/fmed.2017.00118

3. Indonesian Pulmonologist Association. Interstitial Lung Disease. 2017.

4. Hussin MH, Kassim MJ, Physics. The corrosion inhibition and adsorption behavior of Uncaria gambir extract on mild steel in 1 M HCl. Mater Chem Phys. 2011;125(3):461–8. DOI:10.1016/j.matchemphys.2010.10.032

5. Bharrhan S, Koul A, Chopra K, Rishi P. Catechin suppresses an array of signalling molecules and modulates alcohol-induced endotoxin mediated liver injury in a rat model. PLoS One. 2011;6(6):e20635. DOI: 10.1371/journal.pone.0020635

6. Anggraini T, Tai A, Yoshino T, Itani T. Antioxidative activity and catechin content of four kinds of Uncaria gambir extracts from West Sumatra, Indonesia. J Biochem. 2011;5(1):33–8.

7. Ferita I, Jamsari J, Suliansyah I, Gustian G. Study of the relation between anatomical and molecular morphological characters related to potential levels of catechins in gambir plants (Uncaria gambir (Hunter) Roxb.). Andalas University Repository; 2015.

8. Rauf R, Santoso U, Suparmo S. DPPH radical scavenging activity of gambir extract (Uncaria gambir Roxb.). AgriTECH. 2010;30(1). DOI: 10.22146/agritech.9684

9. Melia S, Novia D, Juliyarsi I. Antioxidant and antimicrobial activities of gambir (Uncaria gambir roxb) extracts and their application in rendang. Pak J Nutr. 2015;14(12):938. DOI:10.3923/pjn.2015.938.941

10. Fois AG, Paliogiannis P, Sotgia S, Mangoni AA, Zinellu E, Pirina P, et al. Evaluation of oxidative stress biomarkers in idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis and therapeutic applications: A systematic review. Respir Res. 2018;19(1):51. DOI: 10.1186/s12931-018-0754-7

11. Tsai M-J, Chang W-A, Liao S-H, Chang K-F, Sheu C-C, Kuo P-LJIjoms. The effects of Epigallocatechin gallate (EGCG) on pulmonary fibroblasts of idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis (IPF)—A next-generation sequencing and bioinformatic approach. Int J Mol Sci. 2019;20(8):1958. DOI: 10.3390/ijms20081958

12. Todd NW, Luzina IG, Atamas SP. Molecular and cellular mechanisms of pulmonary fibrosis. Fibrogenesis Tissue Repair. 2012;5(1):11. DOI: 10.1186/1755-1536-5-11

13. Cheresh P, Kim S-J, Tulasiram S, Kamp DW. Oxidative stress and pulmonary fibrosis. Biochim Biophys Acta. 2013;1832(7):1028–40. DOI: 10.1016/j.bbadis.2012.11.021

14. Li D, Guabiraba R, Besnard A-G, Komai-Koma M, Jabir MS, Zhang L, et al. IL-33 promotes ST2-dependent lung fibrosis by the induction of alternatively activated macrophages

and innate lymphoid cells in mice. J Allergy Clin Immunol 2014;134(6):1422-32. DOI: 10.1016/j.jaci.2014.05.011

15. Tabuchi M, Hayakawa S, Honda E, Ooshima K, Itoh T, Yoshida K, Park AM, Higashino H, Isemura M, Munakata H. Epigallocatechin-3-gallate suppresses transforming growth factorbeta signaling by interacting with the transforming growth factor-beta type II receptor. World J Exp Med 2013; 3(4): 100-107 [DOI: 10.5493/wjem.v3.i4.100]

16. Zheng C, Yin Q, Wu H. Structural studies of NF- $\kappa$ B signaling. Cell Res. 2011;21(1):183. DOI: 10.1038/cr.2010.171

17. Beigh S, Rashid H, Sharma S, Parvez S, Raisuddin S. Bleomycin-induced pulmonary toxicopathological changes in rats and its prevention by walnut extract. Biomed Pharmacother. 2017;94:418–29. DOI: 10.1016/j.biopha.2017.07.124

18. Ningsih S. Hepatoprotective effect of gambier (Uncaria gambir) in inhibiting collagen formation by suppressing TIMP-1 (Tissue inhibitor of metalloproteinase-1) in vivo. Dissertation doctoral program in biomedical science Faculty of medicine University of Indonesia. 2015.

19. You H, Wei L, Sun W-L, Wang L, Yang Z-L, Liu Y, et al. The green tea extract epigallocatechin-3-gallate inhibits irradiation-induced pulmonary fibrosis in adult rats. Int J Mol Med. 2014;34(1):92–102. DOI: 10.3892/ijmm.2014.1745

20. Di Paola R, Mazzon E, Muià C, Genovese T, Menegazzi M, Zaffini R, et al. Green tea polyphenol extract attenuates lung injury in experimental model of carrageenan-induced pleurisy in mice. Respir Res. 2005;6(1):66. DOI: 10.1186/1465-9921-6-66

21. Donà M, Dell'Aica I, Calabrese F, Benelli R, Morini M, Albini A, et al. Neutrophil restraint by green tea: inhibition of inflammation, associated angiogenesis, and pulmonary fibrosis. J Immunol. 2003;170(8):4335–41. DOI: 10.4049/jimmunol.170.8.4335

22. Lago JHG, Toledo-Arruda AC, Mernak M, Barrosa KH, Martins MA, Tibério IF, et al. Structure-activity association of flavonoids in lung diseases. Molecules. 2014;19(3):3570-95. DOI: 10.3390/molecules19033570

23. Peng R, Sridhar S, Tyagi G, Phillips JE, Garrido R, Harris P, et al. Bleomycin induces molecular changes directly relevant to idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis: a model for "active" disease. PloS One. 2013;8(4):5934–8. DOI: 10.1371/journal.pone.0059348

24. Seger S, Stritt M, Vezzali E, Nayler O, Hess P, Groenen PM, et al. A fully automated image analysis method to quantify lung fibrosis in the bleomycin-induced rat model. PloS one. 2018;13(3). DOI: 10.1371/journal.pone.0193057

25. Hemmann S, Graf J, Roderfeld M, Roeb E. Expression of MMPs and TIMPs in liver fibrosis–A systematic review with special emphasis on anti-fibrotic strategies. J Hepatol. 2007;46(5):955–75. DOI: 10.1016/j.jhep.2007.02.003

26. Zhen M-c, Huang X-h, Wang Q, Sun K, Liu Y-j, Li W, et al. Green tea polyphenol epigallocatechin-3-gallate suppresses rat hepatic stellate cell invasion by inhibition of MMP-2 expression and its activation. Acta Pharmacol Sin. 2006;27(12):1600–7. DOI: 10.1016/j.jnutbio.2006.12.016

27. Salem MY, El-Azab N, Faruk EM. Modulatory effects of green tea and aloe vera extracts on experimentally-induced lung fibrosis in rats: histological and immunohistochemical study. J Histol & Histopath. 2014;1:6. DOI:10.7243/2055-091X-1-6

28. Nakamuta M, Higashi N, Kohjima M, Fukushima M, Ohta S, Kotoh K, et al. Epigallocatechin-3-gallate, a polyphenol component of green tea, suppresses both collagen production and collagenase activity in hepatic stellate cells. Int J Mol Med. 2005;16(4):677–81.

29. Arpino V, Brock M, Gill SE. The role of TIMPs in regulation of extracellular matrix proteolysis. Matrix Biol. 2015;44:247–54. DOI: 10.1016/j.matbio.2015.03.005

30. Chen Y, Yu Q, Xu C. A convenient method for quantifying collagen fibers in atherosclerotic lesions by ImageJ software. 2017;10(10):14904–10.

31. Bitzer M, von Gersdorff G, Liang D, Dominguez-Rosales A, Beg AA, Rojkind M, et al. A mechanism of suppression of TGF– $\beta$ /SMAD signaling by NF- $\kappa$ B/RelA. Genes Dev. 2000;14(2):187–97.

32. El-Safti FA, Zolfakar AS, El-Sherif NM, Alafify AS. Effect of green tea extract on experimentally induced lung fibrosis in adult male albino rats. Journal of American Science. 2014;10(8).

33. Desdiani, D.; Rengganis, I.; Djauzi, S.; Setiyono, A.; Sadikin, M.; Jusman, S.W.A.; Siregar, N.C.; Suradi, S.; Eyanoer, P.C. Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis. Preprints 2021, 2021100086 (doi: 10.20944/preprints202110.0086.v1).

# **Reviewer Reports 20 April 2022**

- Editorial Comments	
Decision	Valeria Sülsen 28.04.2
Major Revision Requested	
Message for Author	
Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes	
- Reviewer Reports	1 subr
Report	<b>Reviewer 1</b> 20.04.2
-Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understu -In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval. -The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing	od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way, 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they dir
not use one cagegroup?. - The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic. -The route of administration of Gambir should be mentioned.	
The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method used     The authors did not mention how they count the cells. They have to mention if they used an automated cell     Figures for AF G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir (H& Mt) are missed.	ed to euthanize the animals. counter or manual hemocytometer counting
<ul> <li>- why the authors used the discrepancy values. The petter to use the percentage values.</li> <li><u>Hindawi</u> <u>Privacy Policy</u> <u>Terms of Service</u> Suppo</li> </ul>	t: <u>help@hindawi.com</u>
Hindawi	
Message for Author	
Message for Author Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes	
Message for Author Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes - Reviewer Reports	1 subr
Message for Author Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes - Reviewer Reports Report	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         Report         -Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understited.	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way,
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         -         Reviewer Reports         -	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way, 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they did
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         - Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understu- In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval.         - The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing not use one cagedgroup?.         - The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic.         The outhors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic.	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way, 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they did
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         - Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understu- In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval.         - The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing not use one cage/group?         - The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic.         - The route of administration of Gambir should be mentioned.         - The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method used to	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way, 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they did red to euthanize the animals.
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         - Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understu- -In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval. -The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing not use one cage/group?.         - The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic. -The authors of Gambirs should be mentioned.         - The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method u - The authors did not mention how they count the cells. They have to mention if they used an automated cell - Figures for AFG C626 = 256 ma/ka bodweint of antifibratic campir (H& Mt) are misced.	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way. 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they did red to euthanize the animals. counter or manual hemocytometer counting
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         - Report         - Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understered.         - In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval.         - The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing not use one cage/group?         - The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method cell         - Figures for AF G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir (H& Mt) are missed.         - Why the authors used the discrepancy values. The better to use the percentage values.	1 subr Reviewer 1 20.04.2 od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way, 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they dic red to euthanize the animals. counter or manual hemocytometer counting band of p65, as shown in Figure 7. The authors did not clarify the grou
Message for Author         Dear authors,         Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes         - Reviewer Reports         - Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understet - In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval.         - The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing not use one cage/group?         - The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic.         - The route of administration of Gambir should be mentioned.         - The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method u - The authors did not mention how they count the cells. They have to mention if they used an automated cell         - Figures for AF G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir (H& Mt) are missed.         - Why the authors used the discrepancy values. The better to use the percentage values.         - Western blot assay revealed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups of gambir was seen in a specific in Figure 7.         - Information the case of the discrepancy values.         - Western blot assay revealed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups of gambir was seen in a specific in Figure 7.	subr     Reviewer 1 20.04.2  od. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way.  1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they dic ied to euthanize the animals. counter or manual hemocytometer counting band of p65, as shown in Figure 7. The authors did not clarify the grou Is to be understood. I have to ped them covered times to understood.

# Editor Decision 28 April 2022

	Hindawi
	Dear Dr. Desdiani,
	In order for your submission "Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis" to Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine to proceed to the review process, there needs to be a revision. Reason & Details:
	<b>C</b> Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the reviewer comments and highlight the changes
	For more information about what is required, please click the link below.
	Kind regards, Valeria Sülsen Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine
	This email was sent to <b>desdiani@ymail.com</b> . You have received this email in regards to the account creation, submission, or peer review process of a submitted paper, published by Hindawi Limited. Hindawi Limited, 3rd Floor, Adam House, 1 Fitzroy Square, London, W1T 5HF, United Kingdom
	L'indoui reanade vour riabi le priveau. Alesse ann au priveu paller for information an hou we alore process
<ul> <li>HINDAWI</li> <li>Author Declaration</li> <li>Conflict of interest: Not declared</li> <li>Data availability statement: Dat</li> <li>Funding statement: This researd</li> <li>the Republic of Indonesia (KEMRI</li> </ul>	d ta is contained within the article. ch was funded by Beasiswa Unggulan Dosen Indonesia Dalam Negeri (BUDI-DN) through the Ministry of Research, Technology and Higher Education of ISTEKDIKTI), together with the Indonesia Endowment Fund for Education (LPDP).
> Files 2	
- Editorial Comments	
Decision	Valeria Sulsen 28.04.2022
Decision Major Revision Requested Message for Author Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according	Valena Sulsen 28.04.2022

✓ Files 2				
Main manuscript			Cover letter	
Manuscript Gambir.docx	14 MB	¢	Cover Letter Gambir.docx	20 kB
- Editorial Comments				
- Editorial Comments				
– Editorial Comments				Valoria Sülson 28.04
- Editorial Comments Decision Major Revision Requested				Valeria Sülsen 28.04.2
Editorial Comments  Decision  Major Revision Requested  Message for Author				Vəleriə Sülsen 28.04.2
Editorial Comments  Decision Major Revision Requested  Message for Author Dear authors, Revise the manuscript according to the review	ver comments and highlight the change	es		Vəleria Sülsen 28.04.

# **Response to Editor Decision (For Revision Article) Dear**

# **Reviewer**,

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to submit a revised draft of the manuscript "Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis"

We appreciate the time and effort that you dedicated to providing feedback on our manuscript and are grateful for the insightful comments and valuable improvements to our paper. We have incorporated most of the suggestions made by the reviewers. Please see below, for a point-by-point response to the reviewers' comments and concerns:

# **1.** Unfortunately, this manuscript is written in a very complicated way that makes it very difficult to be understood. The authors have to rewrite it in a simple way.

 $\rightarrow$  We agree and have updated the manuscript.

# 2. In the Ethics Statement, the authors have to mention the number of the Ethical Committee approval.

 $\rightarrow$  The ethics statement already mentioned in Material and Methods section

"This study was conducted according to the requirements of the Helsinki Declaration, and approval was obtained from the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Veterinary Medicine IPB University, Bogor, Indonesia, under registration number 114/KEH/SKE/XII/2018, and the Health Research Ethics Committee, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Indonesia."

# 3. The authors mentioned that the rats were acclimatized for 14 d in individual polycarbonate cages containing 1 rat per cage. This means that they used 3 cages/ group. Why they did not use one cage/group?

→ If we use 3 rats/cage, it would affect the growth of the rat (Hughes and Nowak, 1973). Based on Kane (2002), the rats were consistent in their preference for the larger cages and rats should be given larger space allowance. Animals should be able to express normal postures and have some freedom of movement; both conditions were difficult to achieve in the small cages when 2 adult rats and a litter were present (Gaskill and Corning, 2015).

# 4. The authors have to declare why they used an albendazole anthelmintic.

 $\rightarrow$  Albendazole anthelmintic used because the mode of action of albendazole anthelmintic is by binding strongly with the tubulin of nematodes leading to nematode death. It has low acute toxicity

when given by the oral route to mice, rats. Furthermore, based on carcinogenicity bioassays, albendazole giving no evidence of neoplasiea in rats/mice (European Medicines Agency, 2004).

# 5. The route of administration of Gambir should be mentioned.

 $\rightarrow$  The Gambir was given orally and the bleomycin was given intratracheally. We have updated the route of administration into the Material and Methods section:

"...The dose of bleomycin used was 4 mg/kg body weight, given intratracheally. The doses of gambir given were 65 mg, 131 mg, and 262 mg/kg body weight orally..."

# 6. The authors did not mention the method used to euthanize the animals. They have to mention the method used to euthanize the animals.

 $\rightarrow$  The rats were euthanizing by injectable anesthetics methods using ketamine lethal dose. After confirming the death by examining the vital signs, the rats were undergoing surgery from lower abdomen to thorax. We also have updated the methods at the "2.2. Rats and Gambir Dosing"

"... All rats were terminated at the end of the seventh week or on day 50 with injectable anesthetics methods using ketamine lethal dose."

# 7. The authors did not mention how they count the cells. They have to mention if they used an automated cell counter or manual hemocytometer counting

 $\rightarrow$  The cell counting was conducted using manual hemocytometer. We already add the methods into "2.4. Bronchoalveolar Lavage Fluid Collection, Cell Counts, and TGF- $\beta$ 1 ELISA"

"... The smear placed under microscope and cells was count manually using manual hemocytometer.."

# 8. Figures for AF G262 = 262 mg/kg bodyweight of antifibrotic gambir (H& Mt) are missed.

 $\rightarrow$  The figures already add into the "Figure 2" in "3.2. Effects of Gambir on Bleomycin-Induced Pulmonary Fibrosis" section.

# 9. Why the authors used the discrepancy values. The better to use the percentage values.

 $\rightarrow$  The discrepancy values was used because the sample size was small and has non-uniform sampling patterns. The drawback using percentage value in statistical analysis based on normal-theory methods is that its distribution may be highly skewed (Berry and Ayers, 2006)

10. Western blot assay revealed that the fibropreventive and antifibrotic groups of gambir was seen in a specific band of p65, as shown in Figure 7. The authors did not clarify the groups in Figure 7.

 $\rightarrow$  We already add the information regarding the group of treatment at the Western Blot result and "4.7. Interaction between Gambir and NF- $\kappa$ B Using the Western Blot Method" section in Discussion.

"... This indicated that the bonding interaction of gambir with NF- $\kappa$ B could prevent the translocation to the nucleus, thus no initiation of inflammatory/fibrogenesis process..."

11.Unfortunately, the results and the discussion were written in a very complicated way that makes them difficult to be understood. I have to read them several times to understand. It will be understood if the authors wrote in a more simple way.

 $\rightarrow$  We already changed the results and discussion section.

# **References:**

Hughes, P.C.R and Nowak, M. 1973. THE EFFECT OF THE NUMBER OF ANIMALS PER CAGE ON THE GROWTH OF THE RAT. *Laboratory Animals*. 7 : 293-6

Kane, E.G.P. 2002. Cage Size Preference in Rats in the Laboratory. *Journal of Applied Animal Welfare Science*. 5(1):63-72

Gaskill, B. N., & Pritchett-Corning, K. R. 2015. Effect of Cage Space on Behavior and Reproduction in Crl:CD(SD) and BN/Crl Laboratory Rats. *Journal of the American Association for Laboratory Animal Science : JAALAS*, 54(5), 497–506.

European Medicines Agency. 2004. Summary report (3): Committee for veterinary medicinal products for veterinary use; albendazole (extrapolation to all ruminants). EMEA/MRL/865/03-FINAL

Donald A. Berry and Gregory D. Ayers. 2006. Symmetrized Percent Change for Treatment Comparisons. The American Statistician. 60 (1) : 27-3

# Revise Submission 28 April 2022

W Hindawi			
← BACK DASHBOARD / ARTICLE DETAILS			C→ Updated on 2022-04-28 Version 2 ∨
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis Desdiani Desdiani ऒ I his Rengganis <sup>2</sup> , Samsuridjal Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , Mohamad Sadikin <sup>4</sup> , Sri Widia A. Jusman <sup>4</sup> , Nuryati Chairani Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> , Putri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup> + Show Affiliations Article Type Research Article Journal Evidence-Based Complementary and Atternative Medicine			VIEWING AN OLDER VERSION ID 6721958
Sülsen Valeria			Submitted on 2022-04-28 (a year ago)
> Abstract			
> Author Declaration			
✓ Files 2			
Main manuscript		Cover letter	
Manuscript Gambir Final_30052022.docx 4 MB	৶	Cover Letter Gambir.docx	20 kB 🕁

# Revision 17 Mei 2022

Hindawi Author Reminder – submit your revised files

Dari: Hindawi (hindawi@email.hindawi.com) Kepada: desdiani@ymail.com Tanggal: Selasa, 17 Mei 2022 pukul 23.30 GMT+7



#### Dear Dr. Desdiani Desdiani,

I'm contacting you about your manuscript titled 'Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis'.

The journal editor has requested for major revisions to be made to your manuscript. Please read through the proposed revisions and submit your revised manuscript files by clicking on the button below. A new submission should not be created to submit the revised files.

Submit your revised file

We allow a deadline of 3 months to submit a revised manuscript after a major revision decision. If you require an extension or have any questions, please contact me, and I will be happy to help.

Please note, should your manuscript be accepted, we will require editable versions of your figure files. Therefore, if you are able to upload your editable figure files at this stage it may save time at the production stages should your paper reach publication.

If you've already submitted your revised files or have been in touch with us about an extension, then you can ignore this email.

Best wishes,

Karthikeyan Kalahasthi Editorial Assistant karthikeyan.kalahasthi@hindawi.com Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine

Hindawi.com | Twitter | Facebook | LinkedIn | YouTube

## **Revision Reminder 24 Mei 2022**

8/14/23, 2:37 PM

Yahoo Mail - Hindawi Author Reminder - submit your revised files

#### Hindawi Author Reminder - submit your revised files

Dari: Hindawi (hindawi@email.hindawi.com)

Kepada: desdiani@ymail.com

Tanggal: Selasa, 24 Mei 2022 pukul 23.30 GMT+7



Dear Dr. Desdiani Desdiani,

I'm contacting you about your manuscript titled 'Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis'.

The journal editor has requested for major revisions to be made to your manuscript. Please read through the proposed revisions and submit your revised manuscript files by clicking on the button below. A new submission should not be created to submit the revised files.



We allow a deadline of 3 months to submit a revised manuscript after a major revision decision. If you require an extension or have any questions, please contact me, and I will be happy to help.

Please note, should your manuscript be accepted, we will require editable versions of your figure files. Therefore, if you are able to upload your editable figure files at this stage it may save time at the production stages should your paper reach publication.

If you've already submitted your revised files or have been in touch with us about an extension, then you can ignore this email.

Best wishes,

Karthikeyan Kalahasthi Editorial Assistant karthikeyan.kalahasthi@hindawi.com Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine

---

Hindawi.com | Twitter | Facebook | LinkedIn | YouTube

about:blank

# Article Update 9 Juni 2022

BACK DASHBOARD / ARTICLE DETAILS	ि Updated on 2022-06-09 Version 2.1
Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria	PUBLISHED
gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis	ID 67219
Desdiani Desdiani ⊠ ⊠ 1, Iris Rengganis <sup>2</sup> , Samsuridjal Djauzi <sup>2</sup> , Agus Setiyono <sup>3</sup> , Mohamad Sadikin <sup>4</sup> , Sri Widia A. Jusman <sup>4</sup> , Nuryati Chairani Siregar <sup>5</sup> , Suradi Suradi <sup>6</sup> , Putri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup> + Show Affiliations	
Article Type	
Research Article	
Journal	
Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine	
Sülsen Valeria	Submitted on 2022-06-09 (a year ago)
> Abstract	
Author Declaration	

# () Hindawi

Desdiar

Sülsen Valeria				Submitted on 2022-06-09 (a	year ago
> Abstract					
> Author Declaration					
V Files 10					
Main manuscript			Cover letter		
Manuscript Gambir Final_30052022.docx	4 MB	৶	Cover Letter Gambir.docx	20 kB	৶
Figure files					
Figure 1.docx				518 kB	Ŀ
Figure 2.docx				4 MB	↳
Figure 3.docx				50 kB	Ŀ
Figure 4.docx				39 kB	⇒
Figure 5.docx				40 kB	⇒
Figure 6.docx				40 kB	Ŀ
					-1-

# Article Accepted 9 Juni 2022

672195	i8: Article Processing Charges							
Dari:	lindawi Invoicing (invoices@hindawi.com)							
Kepada:	desdiani@ymail.com							
Tanggal:	Kamis, 9 Juni 2022 pukul 16.49 GMT+7							
	Lindawi							
	Dear Dr. Desdiani Desdiani,							
	Thank you for choosing Hindawi to publish your manuscript							
	We are pleased to inform you that your manuscript, Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis, has been accepted for publication in the journal, Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine. We will be in touch shortly to request electronic files for your manuscript.							
	The publication process will begin upon the receipt of these files.	plication process will begin upon the receipt of these files.						
	As an open access journal, Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine has an associated Article Processing Charge. The total charges for your manuscript 6721958, before any taxes, are USD 2550.							
	VAT charges will be applied for individuals resident in the UK and for institutions registered in the UK. VAT is calculated at the applicable rate, currently 20%, on the net USD amount and this VAT charge will be available for review on the invoice prior to confirmation.							
	What to do next?							
	This invoice is payable upon receipt. You can view the invoice for your article, confirm billing details, apply coupons and make payment through the following URL:							
	INVOICE DETAILS							
	You do not need to log in to your account to access the link. After entering your billing							
	address information, you will be able to pay by credit card, PayPal or bank transfer. We are unable to accept payment by check.							
	If paying by <b>credit card</b> , we accept <b>Visa</b> , <b>Mastercard</b> , <b>Discover</b> and <b>Maestro</b> . If your credit card is not one of these then you may be able to use <b>PayPal</b> to make payment							

#### 8/14/23, 2:39 PM

#### Yahoo Mail - 6721958: Article Processing Charges

using your credit card.

If paying by **bank transfer**, please use invoice number in the payment reference and return a scanned copy of the bank payment authorization by email to <u>invoices@hindawi.com</u> to help us track your payment. Please note that bank transfer payments can take up to a week to arrive and will be confirmed as soon as funds have cleared.

If the payment needs to be made by your institution or by another author, you can forward them the invoice link in this email and they will be able to make payment directly. However, please note that as the author that submitted the article remains responsible for ensuring payment is made in full, you may be contacted if this institution or author does not make payment.

#### Got a question?

If you have any questions related to the invoice, just reply to this email and our Customer Service team will be happy to help.

Hindawi respects your right to privacy. Please see our privacy policy for information on how we store, process, and safeguard your data.

Unsubscribe

about:blank

# Accepted for Publication 9 Juni 2022

4/23, 2:41 PI	M Yahoo Mail - Your manuscript has been accepted for publication					
Your m	nanuscript has been accepted for publication					
Dari: Kepada: Tanggal:	Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine (karthikeyan.kalahasthi@hindawi.com) desdiani@ymail.com Kamis, 9 Juni 2022 pukul 16.51 GMT+7					
	Hindawi					
	Dear Dr. Desdiani,					
	I am delighted to inform you that the review of your Research Article 6721958 titled Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis has been completed and your article has been accepted for publication in Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine.					
	Please visit the manuscript details page to review the editorial notes and any comments from external reviewers. If you have deposited your manuscript on a preprint server, now would be a good time to update it with the accepted version. If you have not deposited your manuscript on a preprint server, you are free to do so.					
	We will now check that all of your files are complete before passing them over to our production team for processing. We will let you know soon should we require any further information.					
	As an open access journal, publication of articles in Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine are associated with Article Processing Charges. If applicable, you will receive a separate communication from our Editorial office in relation to this shortly. In regards to payments, we will:					
	<ul> <li>Only ever contact you from @hindawi.com email addresses. If you receive communications that claim to be from us, or one of our journals, but do not come from an @hindawi.com email address, please contact us directly at help@hindawi.com</li> <li>Only ever request payment through our own invoicing system.Any email requesting payment will always be from an @hindawi.com email address and will always direct you to our invoicing system with a link beginning https://invoicing.hindawi.com</li> </ul>					
	If you receive payment requests or information in ways other than this, or have any questions about Article Processing Charges, please contact us at help@hindawi.com.					
	Finally, we have partnered with leading author service providers to offer our authors discounts on a wide range of post-publication services (including videos, posters and more) to help you enhance the visibility and impact of your academic paper. Please <u>visit</u> our author services page to learn more.					

#### 8/14/23, 2:41 PM

#### Yahoo Mail - Your manuscript has been accepted for publication

Thank you for choosing to publish with Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine.

MANUSCRIPT DETAILS

#### Kind regards, Caigan Du

This email was sent to desdiani@ymail.com. You have received this email in regards to the account creation, submission, or peer review process of a submitted paper, published by Hindawi Limited. Hindawi Limited, 3rd Floor, Adam House, 1 Fitzroy Square, London, W1T 5HF, United Kingdom Hindawi respects your right to privacy. Please see our privacy policy for information on how we store, process, and safeguard your data.

Unsubscribe

about:blank

# Article Production 11 Juni 2022

ridence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine (karthikeyan.kalahasthi@hindawi.com)							
ridence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine (karthikeyan.kalahasthi@hindawi.com)							
xcdiani@vmail.com							
solarieynai.com							
Sabtu, 11 Juni 2022 pukul 22.15 GMT+7							
Hindawi							
Dear Dr. Desdiani,							
Now that all the checks of your files have been completed, we are pleased to inform you that your manuscript is moving into production to ready it for publication online.							
Our Production team will contact you in the near future with proofs of the final version of your manuscript for your feedback and comments.							
Thank you again for choosing to publish with Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine.							
Kind regards, Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine							
This email was sent to desdianl@ymail.com. You have received this email in regards to the account creation,							
ubmission, or peer review process of a submitted paper, published by Hindawi Limited.							
lindawi respects your right to privacy. Please see our privacy policy for information on how we store, process, and safeguard your data.							
<u>Unsubscribe</u>							
	<image/> <text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text></text>						

By using this website, you consent to the use of cookies as described in our <u>Privacy Policy</u> X
Online Proofing System
Hindawi Desdiani Logout
Error message This galley proof (6721958) has been archived. Please contact editorial office.
Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine <production.b@hindawi.com> Kepada: desdiani@ymail.com Cc: putrice00@yahoo.com, desdianimuchlis@gmail.com, anisiregar@gmail.com, sriwidiaaj@yahoo.com, sadikinmohamad@gmail.com dan 5 lainnya</production.b@hindawi.com>
Dear Dr. Desdiani,
I am pleased to let you know that the first set of galley proofs of your Research Article 6721958 titled "Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis," is ready. You can apply your corrections directly to the manuscript with the Online Proofing System (OPS).
Using the OPS, you can quickly and easily make corrections directly to your galley proofs and submit these corrections with a single click.
https://ops.hindawi.com/author/6721958/
Please note, although all authors can view the proof, it is only the submitting author (the author addressed in this email) who has the ability to edit and submit the corrections. However, the submitting author can log in to the OPS and re-assign the proof to another author if necessary. The submitting author will need to log in with the email address included on this email.
If a new corresponding author is added, they must log into their manuscript tracking system account and add their ORCID ID. Any additional ORCID IDs added on during proofing will also need to be updated on that author's account. Delays can occur if this isn't done.
We encourage all authors to provide figures that are suitable for visually imparied readers. Please refer to the section "Are your figures accessible to all readers?" on our website <u>https://www.hindawi.com/publish-research/authors/ready-submit/</u> for advice on how to make your figures as accessible as possible, including guidelines on preferred colour combinations. Please upload any replacement figure files as attachments to the online proofing system.
To expedite the publication of your manuscript, please send us your corrected galley proofs within two days.
Please ensure that you read the proofs thoroughly and make all necessary corrections at this stage. A second round of proofs may be requested only for checking essential changes or major revisions.
Best regards,
Hindawi Production Team Hindawi <u>https://www.hindawi.com</u>

# Galley Proof Article (Has been archived) 21 Juni 2022

# Article Published 27 Juni 2022



() Hindawi

Q

Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine											
Journal overview V For authors	For review	For reviewers For editors Table of Co			tents	Sp	ecial Issues	~			
Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicin	e / 2022 / Article										
On this page	Research Article   Open Access Volume 2022   Article ID 6721958   https://doi.org/10.1155/2022/6721958				🔎 PDF	-		₹			
Abstract	Show citation	Show citation									
Introduction	Fibropreve	Fibropreventive and Antifibrotic Effects of				Download Citation			₹		
Materials and Methods	Uncaria gambir on Rats with Pulmonary Fibrosis				➡ Download other formats			~			
Results											
Discussion	Desdiani Desdiani ⊠ ⊚, <sup>1</sup> Iris Rengganis, <sup>2</sup> Samsuridjal Djauzi, <sup>2</sup> Agus Setiyono, <sup>3</sup> Mohamad Sadikin, <sup>4</sup> Sri Widia A. Jusman, <sup>4</sup> Nuryati Chairani Siregar, <sup>5</sup> Suradi Suradi, <sup>6</sup> and Putri C. Eyanoer <sup>7</sup>					Order printed copies			$\rightarrow$		
Data Availability						Views					
Ethical Approval	Show more Academic Editor: Valeria Sülsen				282						
Conflicts of Interest	Received Revised Accepted Published				342						
Authors' Contributions	14 Oct 2021	30 May 2022	09 Jun 2022	26 Jun 20	22						
Acknowledgments	Abstract					٢	in	Ø			
References	Pulmonary fibrosis c lungs <i>Uncaria gambi</i>	Pulmonary fibrosis causes scar tissue formation that disrupts the functioning of the lunes, <i>Lincaria eambir</i> (Hunter) Roxb (hereafter eambir)—a plant native to West Sumatra					Related articles				
Copyright	in Indonesia—contain favonoid (+)-catechin, which has strong antioxidant activity and can be used to combat pulmonary fibrosis. This random in vivo experimental study										
Related Articles	analyzed the antifibr fibrosis. The subjects 250 g. All groups wer were cleaned, and tis levels using broncho inhibitor of metallop and activation of N histopathological cha	analyzed the antifibrotic effect of gambir on the lungs of rats with bleomycin-induced fibrosis. The subjects were 10 groups of 10-week-old male rats weighing around 200– 250 g. All groups were terminated at the end of the seventh week or on day 50. The lungs were cleaned, and tissues were taken to analyze inflammatory cell counts and TGF- <i>β</i> I levels using bronchoalveolar lavage (BAL) with ELISA; type I collagen and tissue inhibitor of metalloproteinase 1 (TIMP-1) levels using immunohistochemistry (IHC); and activation of NF-xB using ELISA and Western blot assays. The most severe histopathological characteristic based on the modified Ashcroft score was in the				An Inhibitor of Nuclear Factor-Kappa B Pathway Attenuates the Release of TGF-β1 and Inhibits the Fibrogenic Progress in a Model of Airway Remodeling Induced by Acrolein Peng Chen   Xiaoxia Wang     Hong Liu					

(BG) whereas

the mildes

in the

Link :

https://www.hindawi.com/journals/ecam/2022/6721958/